## Village Board Meeting Minutes October 5, 2021

The Village of Caledonia Board of Trustees held a meeting on Tuesday, October 5, 2021 at 6:30 p.m. at the Village Office.

**Members Present:** Mayor Scott DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor Jerry O'Donoghue, Trustee Dorothy Grant-Fletcher, Janet Cappotelli and Sarah Santora, Code Enforcement Officer Mike Burnside and Working Foreman Chris Buckley. Absent: Police OIC Jared Passamonte

A **motion** was made by Trustee Grant-Fletcher to approve the August 30, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora.

NAY: None

**Public Forum:** John Kabrovski, owner of Raider Lanes and Ted VanSon, Operations Manager, gave an update on the opening of the courtyard. Raider Lanes is open for bowling, food is being served outside on the patio and three acoustic bands have played. The construction is complete at the 3154 State Street building; opening is within 30-45 days. There will be a Community Halloween held at the patio courtyard on Sunday, October 31<sup>st</sup> from 4-8 p.m. Businesses are welcome to set up tables, dress for Halloween and hand out candy. Characters will be present. BuddytheBigfoot photos will be taken, decorations and bowling.

Mayor DiLiberto Report – updated the board members on the ongoing Livingston County Hazard Mitigation Plan Project. Chris Buckley assisted with the last list of information they requested. The Mill Street 2 vacant homes have been sold. The Livingston County Landbank can no longer take over the property.

**Trustee Reports** – Trustee Cappotelli discussed park improvements with a community forum to create a group plan. Trustee Santora will also work with Trustee Cappotelli to start the process of raising money for park improvements. Trustee Cappotelli also discussed Breakfast with Santa. The plan is to move forward with the Recreation event and if CDC guidelines change due to COVID it may have to be cancelled. Trustee Santora discussed the Tennent Park dedication of making it Tim Anderson Field being held in May of 2022. Sally would like to have a fairy house on one of the trails similar to the ones at Mendon Ponds and North Hampton Park. The board members were all in agreement that it was a good idea. There is also possibly grant money available through the Genesee Valley Arts Council.

Clerk-Treasurer Ann Marie Grattan presented the Clerk Report for September. Submitted were Budget Status Reports for General, Water, Capital, CD Special Grant and Trust & Agency Funds, a list of revenues and expenditures, the Financial Report and the Water Reconciliation Report and Tax Reconciliation Report. Department Supervisors received their Payroll &

Contractual Reports. A **motion** was made by Trustee Grant-Fletcher to accept the reports; Trustee Grant-Fletcher; Trustee Santora seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

**Tax Resolution:** Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue with Trustee Cappotelli moving for adoption, offered the following resolution:

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to Section 1442 of the New York State Real Property Tax Law, be it resolved that the Village of Caledonia requests collection of certain delinquent Village Taxes by the County of Livingston.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

Outstanding re-levy of taxes to Livingston County is \$22,045.49.

## Water & Street Superintendent Chris Buckley presented the September DPW Report.

7,959,000 gallons of water was pumped and both water testing samples were negative. MRB Engineering is designing the Church Street Water Main Project. Hydrants are being flushed and a water main break was repaired on Park Place. The Commons and Village Office parking lots were striped as were the crosswalks and parking spaces in the Business District. Topsoiled and seeded Center Street and asphalt patched areas on Maple Street and Cameron Place. Mowing continues and leaf pick up begins on October 20<sup>th</sup>. Graffiti was found at Hamilton and Tennent Parks. The mini-split HVAC was installed at the new DPW breakroom building. A **motion** was made by Trustee Santora to accept the report; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

Code Enforcement Officer Mike Burnside presented the September CEO Report. Building permits were issued for a fence, three decks, a shed and egress window. Construction inspections continue at 2926 Main Street, 3250 State Street, 3356 Brown Road and 3154/3156 State Street. The CEO assisted a North Street Business owner with grant application information. 3180 State Street was recently sold; researching uses for the property. Follow ups were for vacant properties at 2917 Main Street and 301 Leicester Street. A motion was made by Trustee Grant-Fletcher to accept the report; Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue seconded the motion. AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

**Police Report for September was presented.** There were 82 calls for service, 10 Town of Caledonia assists, four motor vehicle accidents, one mental health incident, 20 traffic tickets issued and three arrests. The Police Department worked with Child Protective Services on

several different cases. Soliciting complaints in the village were resolved. Officer Estabrooks attended a Jones Chemicals meeting with a Homeland Security agent. Applied Energy at 1 Technology Place was searched for unknown people in the building. There was a lightning strike on Park Place. Officer Schroeder attended the Teddy Bear parade at the Library Fall Festival. There were several ambulances calls and assists with the LeRoy PD and Livingston County Sheriffs Office. A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to accept the report; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

School Resource Officer Mike Burnside presented the SRO Report for September. There were 21 requests for police services, 16 out-of-building assist, six emergency drills and five traffic stops resulting in two tickets issued. There was a lockdown drill at the elementary school and a bullet found on the school track. Surveillance video was reviewed for various incidents. The speed trailer was placed at the school zone. A check was done on an elementary student not attending school and a follow up to a sex abuse incident. The SRO facilitated several NYSP campus visits. A fact sheet app was developed for parents. The SRO testified at a Superintendent hearing. The SRO is working on awareness of TikTok incidents on campus. There is a harassment report with a juvenile suspect and the SRO met with a parent about an elementary student stealing. A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to accept the report; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

## Bills were audited and ordered paid:

Abstract #495, Water \$20,688.44

Abstract #686, General \$4,618.02 & Water \$586.08

Abstract #496, Water \$2,840.06

Abstract #687, General \$46,363.83 & Water \$2,514.90

A **motion** was made by Trustee Grant-Fletcher to approve the bills paid; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

**Capital Budget:** a **motion** was made by Trustee Santora to create a Capital Budget, \$107,384 for the Church Street Water Main Project; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

**Executive Session:** a **motion** was made at 7:35 p.m. by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to enter into Executive Session to discuss personnel/salaries; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

After some discussion, a **motion** was made at 7:55 p.m. by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to close the Executive Session.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

A **motion** was made by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue to increase Chad Parnell's salary to \$23 per hour and increase Chad Grant's salary to \$24 per hour effective October 4, 2021; Trustee Cappotelli seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

There being no further business, a motion to adjourn was made at 8 p.m. by Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue; Trustee Grant-Fletcher seconded the motion.

AYE: Mayor DiLiberto, Deputy-Mayor O'Donoghue, Trustee Cappotelli, Grant-Fletcher and Santora

NAY: None

Ann Marie Grattan Village Clerk-Treasurer